
For any apologies or requests for further information, or to arrange to speak at the meeting 
Contact:  Sarah Baxter  
Tel: 01270 686462 
E-Mail: sarah.baxter@cheshireeast.gov.uk 
  

 

Northern Planning Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Date: Wednesday, 28th April, 2010 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Macclesfield Library 
 
The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest/Pre- Determination   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any personal and/or 

prejudicial interests and for Members to declare if they have pre-determined any item on the 
agenda. 

 
3. Minutes of the Meeting  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 April 2010 as a correct record. 

 
 

4. Public Speaking   
 

Public Document Pack



 A total period of 5 minutes is allocated for each of the planning applications for Ward 
Councillors who are not Members of the Planning Committee. 
  
A period of 3 minutes is allocated for each of the planning applications for the following 
individuals/groups: 
  

• Members who are not Members of the Planning Committee and are not the Ward 
Member  

• The Relevant Town/Parish Council  

• Local Representative Groups/Civic Society  

• Objectors  

• Supporters  

• Applicants  

 
5. 09/4305M-Demolition of Existing Detached Property & Replacement with 

Construction of 53 Bed Senior Living Accommodation with Use Class C1, C2 & 
C3, Langley House, Stanneylands Road, Wilmslow, Cheshire for Mr & Mrs T 
Ghani  (Pages 5 - 18) 

 
 To consider the above application. 

 
6. 10/0869M-Two Storey Rear & Gable Extensions Including Mono Pitch Roof Over 

Porch and Bay Window and Widening Existing Car Park Hardstanding, 17, 
Wingfield Drive, Wilmslow for Mr Ivan Mollinson  (Pages 19 - 24) 

 
 To consider the above application. 

 
7. 10/0696M-Replacement of Existing Outmoded Semi Derelict Agricultural 

Buildings with a new Purpose Designed Agricultural Building, Grange Farm, 
Holmes Chapel Road, Toft, Knutsford for Mr Ian Mcgrath, G.D. Mcgrath  (Pages 
25 - 32) 

 
 To consider the above application. 

 
8. 10/1115M-Single Storey Rear Extension, 9, Gorsey Road, Wilmslow for Mr K 

Whittaker  (Pages 33 - 38) 
 
 To consider the above application. 

 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Northern Planning Committee 
held on Wednesday, 7th April, 2010 at The Capesthorne Room - Town Hall, 

Macclesfield SK10 1DX 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillor R West (Chairman) 
Councillor M Hardy (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors C Andrew, J Crockatt, O Hunter, T Jackson, J Narraway, 
D Neilson, L Smetham, D Stockton, D Thompson and C Tomlinson 
 
OFFICERS PRESENT 
 
Mrs N Folan (Planning Solicitor) and Mr P Hooley (Principal Planning Officer) 

 
 

118 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors B Livesley and Mrs 
L Smetham. 
 

119 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST/PRE DETERMINATION  
 
Councillor D Stockton declared a personal interest in application 
09/4311M-Construction of Building to Provide an Indoor Riding Arena on 
Site of Existing Outdoor Manege, New Barn Farm, Chelford Road, 
Ollerton, Knutsford, Cheshire for New Barn Livery Ltd by virtue of the fact 
that he was Chairman of the Manchester Airport Community Trust Fund 
which had donated some money to the applicant to purchase a horse for 
the applicants business and in accordance with the Code of Conduct he 
remained in the meeting during consideration of the application. 
 
Councillor R J Narraway declared a personal and prejudicial interest in 
application 10/0076M-Redevelopment of Hollands Nursery to a Lodge 
Park (25 no.Timber Lodges), Hollands Nursery, Congleton Road, 
Gawsworth, Cheshire for Metler Property Holdings by virtue of the fact that 
he had a business relationship with Hollands Nursery and in accordance 
with the Code of Conduct he left the meeting prior to consideration of the 
application. 
 

120 MINUTES OF THE MEETING  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman. 
 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3Page 1



121 PUBLIC SPEAKING  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the public speaking procedure be noted. 
 

122 09/4311M-CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDING TO PROVIDE AN 
INDOOR RIDING ARENA ON SITE OF EXISTING OUTDOOR MANEGE, 
NEW BARN FARM, CHELFORD ROAD, OLLERTON, KNUTSFORD, 
CHESHIRE FOR NEW BARN LIVERY LTD  
 
Consideration was given to the above application. 
 
(The agent for the applicant attended the meeting and spoke in respect of 
the application). 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application be approved subject to the following conditions:- 
 

1. A01AP      -  Development in accord with approved plans                                                              

2. A01LS      -  Landscaping - submission of details                                                                                    

3. A02EX      -  Submission of samples of building materials                                                             

4. A03FP      -  Commencement of development (3 years)                                                                

5. A04LS      -  Landscaping (implementation)                                                                          

6. A12MC      -  No lighting in the approved arena                                                                   

7. A15LS      -  Submission of additional landscape details                                                          

8. A24EX      -  Details of colour 

9.  Building to be open sided on all elevations (to clarify the plans 
submitted) 

 
 

123 10/0076M-REDEVELOPMENT OF HOLLANDS NURSERY TO A 
LODGE PARK (25 NO.TIMBER LODGES), HOLLANDS NURSERY, 
CONGLETON ROAD, GAWSWORTH, CHESHIRE FOR METLER 
PROPERTY HOLDINGS  
 
Consideration was given to the above application. 
 
(Councillor Mrs H M Gaddum, the Ward Councillor, Ms D Williams, an 
objector, Mrs L Dowd, the agent for the applicant and Mr P Mason, a 
drainage expert representing the applicant attended the meeting and 
spoke in respect of the application). 
 
The Planning Officer read out / clarified policies W6 and W7 of the 
Regional Spatial Strategy and relevant national planning guidance. 
 

Page 2



RESOLVED 
 
That the application be refused for the following reasons:- 
 

1. The proposed development would fail to achieve a high quality of 
design of tourist accommodation by virtue of the cramped layout, 
density, and lack of amenity and car parking space within the site. 
Contrary to PPS1 and policies W6 and W7 of the RSS. 

 
2. Insufficient information submitted in respect of drainage. 

 
(This was against the Officers recommendation of approval which had 
originally been a recommendation for refusal). 
 
 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.50 pm 
 

Councillor R West (Chairman) 
 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Application No: 09/4305M  

 Location: LANGLEY HOUSE, STANNEYLANDS ROAD, WILMSLOW, 
CHESHIRE, SK9 4HB 

 Proposal: DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DETACHED PROPERTY & 
REPLACEMENT WITH CONSTRUCTION OF 53 BED SENIOR 
LIVING ACCOMMODATION WITH USE CLASS C1, C2 & C3. 
 

 For MR & MRS T GHANI 
 

 Registered 18-Jan-2010 
 Policy Item Yes 
 Grid Reference 384796 383272 
  
Date Report Prepared: 14 April 2010 

 
 
REASON FOR REPORT 
 
The proposal requires determination by the Northern Planning Committee 
under the terms of the Council’s constitution. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
The site lies in the North Cheshire Green Belt and is located west of the urban 
areas of Handforth and Wilmslow. Access is taken from Stanneylands Road, 
which leads south into Wilmslow and north towards the village of Styal. The 
site area (edged red) extends to just under 1 hectare and land in the 
applicant’s ownership extends to a further 2 hectares following the boundary 
of the River Dean to the south. The existing building on the site is a Victorian 
villa that has had numerous alterations in the past, but the main façade facing 
South towards the River Dean has retained its original form. The building itself 
is in a run down condition and has been vacant for a period of time. The 
building lies in spacious grounds with a large garden area to the south of the 

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION 
Refuse 
 
MAIN ISSUES 

• Compliance with Green Belt policy 

• Ecological Impact 

• Impact on protected trees 

• Impact on residential amenity 

• Highway safety 

• Sustainability 

• Design 

• Assessment of need 

• Planning history 

• Compliance with the Development Plan 

Agenda Item 5Page 5



building. The ground levels slope down towards the south and east 
boundaries towards the River Dean and also slope down to the west onto 
Stanneylands Road. Mature woodland exists to the south and very good 
boundary screening exists along the south and west boundaries. Several 
residential properties are located adjacent to the north and northeast 
boundary of the site; these properties have rear gardens that adjoin the site. 
 
DETAILS OF PROPOSAL 
 
The proposal involves the demolition of the existing building known as 
Langley House and its replacement with a 53 bed residential care home. The 
proposal also involves alterations to the access onto Stanneylands Road and 
the provision of car parking on the site. 
 
The application as submitted on the planning application forms refers to the 
construction of a 53 bed senior living accommodation with use class C1, C2 
and C3. However the planning statement and the needs assessment refers to 
a 53 bed residential care home and the transport assessment refers to an 
extra care scheme. This has been raised with the applicant’s agent but no 
further clarification has been given. There is no mention in the supporting 
documentation of a hotel use (use class C1) and the submitted plans do not 
reflect a development that would suit independent living. It is therefore 
considered that the proposal should be assessed as a residential care home 
(use class C2) and the description should be amended to that, subject to the 
agreement from the applicant. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
The site has a long planning history. The building was originally known as 
Oakdene as a Victorian mansion. It was then in commercial use for a long 
period and was most recently known as Amplivox House. Permission was 
granted for the conversion of Amplivox House into a single dwellinghouse as 
part of a scheme to convert the outbuildings that formerly formed the northern 
part of the site into 3 separate dwellings. The building is now known as 
Langley House. The recent relevant planning history is as follows: 
 
01/3020P Conversion of office building (a) to ten apartments, with 2/3 
storey rear  extension; conversion of office building (b) to 3 houses; demolition 
works; and conversion of office building (c) to detached dwelling with garage 
and erection of three detached garages. 
Refused  30.01.2002  APP/C0630/A/02/1095374  Dismissed  19.11.2002. 
 
03/0668P Conversion and extension of office building (a) to form 9 
apartments, conversion and extensions to office building (b) to form 3 
dwellings, conversion and extension of outbuilding (c) to dwelling with garage, 
demolition of outbuildings, alterations to access. 
Approved with conditions  18.062003.       
 

Page 6



05/2685P Conversion & extensions to Oakdene house to 1no.  Dwelling, 
conversion & extension of other buildings to form 3no. Dwellings with 
detached garages, alterations to access & landscaping 
Approved with conditions  04.01.2006.  
 
06/2751P Demolition of single and two storey additions to dwelling. 
Erection of new two storey side extension with plant room in roof space and 
two storey front extension to incorporate garage and domestic 
accommodation above. Erection of detached triple garage  
Approved with conditions  04.01.2007.      
 
POLICY 
 
The Development Plan consists of the North West of England Plan Regional 
Spatial Strategy to 2021 (RSS), the saved policies of the Structure Plan 
Alteration: Cheshire 2016, and the saved policies of the Macclesfield Borough 
Local Plan. 
 
Regional Spatial Strategy 
 
Relevant policies of the RSS include: DP1 Spatial Principles; DP2 Promote 
Sustainable Communities; DP3 Promote Sustainable Economic Development; 
DP4 make the Best Use of Existing Resources and Infrastructure; DP5 
Manage Travel Demand - Reduce the Need to Travel, and Increase 
Accessibility; DP7 Promote Environmental Quality; DP9 Reduce Emissions 
and Adapt to Climate Change; RDF 2 Rural Areas; L2 Understanding Housing 
Markets; L4 Regional Housing Provision; RT2 Managing Travel Demand; RT9 
Walking and Cycling; EM1 Integrated Enhancement and Protection of the 
Region’s Environmental Assets; EM3 Green Infrastructure; EM16 Energy 
Conservation and Efficiency; EM18 Decentralised Energy Supply; MCR3 
Southern Part of the Manchester City Region. 
 
Of the remaining saved Structure Plan policies, only policy T7: Parking is of 
relevance. 
 
Local Plan Policy 
 
Relevant policies of the Local Plan include: NE11 relating to nature 
conservation; GC1 New build in the Green Belt;  BE1 Design Guidance; DC1 
Design; DC3 Residential Amenity; DC6 Circulation and Access; DC8 
Landscaping; DC9 Tree Protection; DC17 and DC18 Water Resources; DC57 
Residential Institutions; T3 Pedestrians; T4 Access for people with restricted 
mobility; and T5 Provision for Cyclists. 
 
Other Material Considerations 
 
National policy guidance set out in PPS1 Delivering Sustainable 
Development, PPG2: Green Belts, PPS3: Housing, PPS4: Planning for 
Sustainable Economic Growth, PPS9 Biodiversity and Geological 

Page 7



Conservation, PPG13 Transport are of most relevance to this development 
proposal. 
 
CONSULTATIONS (External to Planning) 
 
Manchester Airport: No objection from the perspective of aerodrome 
safeguarding. 
 
Strategic Highways Manager: No highway objections subject to conditions. 
 
The original access arrangements proposed as part of the site plan drawing 
were not acceptable from a highway perspective due to the lack of space in 
order for refuse vehicle to access/egress the site and to enable suitable 
positioning for effective visibility. This matter has now been address with 
proposed widening of the access road as demonstrated on Singleton Clamp 
Drawings. 
 
A revised proposed site plan incorporating the access amendments will be 
required and this matter can be addressed by way of condition. 
 
The road is national speed limit, but a speed survey has been undertaken 
justifying a reduced visibility splay. Whilst the present visibility splay is totally 
substandard the applicant is proposing realignment to the boundary wall to 
achieve an acceptable visibility splay. The boundary wall is a retaining wall 
adjacent to the highway. Due to the extent of the works required at the access 
the developer will need to enter into a section 278 agreement. 
 
As part of the sustainable travel arrangements due to the remoteness of the 
site and lack of footways, the applicant will be providing a minibus service for 
residents and staff to provide connection to Wilmslow and the existing bus 
services. A mechanism will be required to ensure that this is maintained for 
the site. 
 
Cycle parking will be required within the site along with suitable changing, 
locker and shower facilities. 
 
As the access condition would be not effective until occupation and it has 
been established that the existing access is not suitable for HGV 
access/egress and general car use with substandard visibility. The developer 
will need to address these matters in the construction method statement. How 
HGV access will be facilitated into and from the site and the safety 
mechanisms to ensure highway safety given the restricted present unsuitable 
visibility 
 

Page 8



OTHER REPRESENTATIONS 
 
2 letters of representation have been received, both raising objections to the 
proposal.  
 
One letter is written on behalf of a representative of the nearby Eden Mansion 
Nursing Home and the concerns are summarised as: 
 
Eden Mansions is in very close proximity to this development and provides 
capacity for 101 residents. There is no demand for an additional 53 beds in 
the immediate area. The location will not minimise travel distances as claimed 
because the site is not in a central location and staff and visitors will have to 
use the car. Employment opportunities will not be for local people due to the 
local demographic and therefore staff travel will be unsustainable. 
 
A very detailed letter of objection has been submitted on behalf of residents 
adjoining the site. The full submission can be viewed online. The objections 
are summarised as: 
 

• The development is contrary to local plan policies GC1, DC1, DC3, DC46 
and DC57 

• The proposal amounts to inappropriate development in the Green Belt and 
there are no very special circumstances 

• It would be detrimental to the amenity of the adjoining properties 

• It would be detrimental to the interests of highway safety 

• The material considerations advanced by the applicant in favour of the 
development are flawed: a) there is no genuine fall back position, b) the 
proposal would not be sustainable or accord with PPS1, c) there is no 
sequential site analysis that could justify need for the development 

 
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
The application forms and plans are accompanied by a planning statement; 
transport statement; arboricultural statement; ecological surveys; design 
scheme report (design and access statement); and a needs assessment 
report. These documents can all be viewed on the file online as background 
papers.  The planning statement concludes: 
 
The proposals: 
 

• have been sensitively designed and scaled so as to minimise any possible 
impact on the openness of the Green Belt and have been detailed so as to 
maximise the environmental benefits to be derived. 

• Contribute to achieving sustainable economic development. 

• Support the up-to-date ‘Key Planning Objectives’ for sustainable 
development set out in the Government’s Supplement to PPS1 and they 
meet a significant need for care home facilities I the locality; thus supply is 
brought near to demand and the need to travel is thereby sustainably 
reduced. 

Page 9



• Protect and enhance the natural environment of the area and increase its 
biodiversity, this enhancing the quality of the Green Belt and its 
landscape. 

• Ensure high quality development through good and inclusive design and 
the efficient use of resources. 

• They also contribute to the creation of a safe, sustainable, balanced and 
liveable mixed community with good access to newly created jobs and 
services. 

 
These considerations outweigh any harm to the Green Belt by reason of 
inappropriateness.  
 
OFFICER APPRAISAL 
 
Principle of Development and Policy 
 
The site lies in the North Cheshire Green Belt. New buildings and materials 
changes in the use of land are strictly controlled within the Green Belt as 
advised in national guidance PPG2 and Local Plan policy GC1. The proposed 
new building and associated use of the land fall to be considered as 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt as defined by PPG2 and Local 
Plan policy GC1, as they do not meet any of the exception criteria. There is a 
presumption against inappropriate development, which should only be 
permitted where other considerations can be demonstrated in favour of the 
development that clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by reason of 
inappropriate development and any other harm. Before assessing any 
considerations in favour of the development, it is therefore important for 
Members to evaluate any additional harm arising for the proposed 
development. 
 
The proposed building would have a floorspace over 3 times greater than the 
existing building on the site, from approximately 1000 sq m to over 3000 sq m. 
In comparison, the extant planning permission for extensions to the building to 
create a single dwelling amount to an increase in floorspace of approximately 
30%. The existing building has a maximum height of nearly 13 metres; the 
proposed building would have a maximum datum height approximately 1.5 
metres lower than the existing, however the footprint and bulk of the proposed 
building would be significantly greater, and in real terms the height of the 
building would be greater due to the alteration in ground levels. In addition to 
the mass of the proposed building it is also proposed to have a large 
basement area with a landscaped terrace above, as well as the formalised car 
park to the front of the building. The resultant development in terms of 
footprint, floorspace and mass would involve a significant erosion of openness 
of the site and would also dramatically alter the character and spacious 
setting of the site. Openness is the most important attribute of the Green Belt 
and therefore significant weight should be afforded to this loss of openness. 
 
In terms of visual amenity from outside the site, the site benefits from very 
good mature screening from public vantage points. Views of the development 
would therefore be reduced to glimpses through the trees and shrubs. The 

Page 10



harm to visual amenity from public vantage points is therefore considered to 
be limited; although given the increased bulk of the development even the 
glimpsed vantage points would offer a noticeable reduction in openness of the 
site. 
 
Policy DC57 of the local plan sets out the criteria for the development of 
residential institutions: The site must be close to local facilities such as bus 
services, local shops and other community facilities and is normally sited in a 
residential area; the concentration of specialist housing and care facilities in 
an area should be avoided; the development must not materially prejudice the 
amenity of neighbouring property; adequate private garden space in the order 
of 10 sq m per resident must be provided; the development satisfies general 
requirements for all developments including adequate parking; vehicular and 
pedestrian access should be safe and convenient, particularly by the 
adequate provision of visibility splays. 
 
The proposal would provide sufficient amenity space and issues of highways 
and amenity are outlined below. However, there is a concern that the 
proposed development does not meet the criteria of policy DC57 in respect of 
proximity to local services and accessibility and because of the nearby 
residential care home on Stannleylands Road leading a concentration of care 
facilities. 
 
Ecology 
 
The EC Habitats Directive 1992 requires the UK to maintain a system of strict 
protection for protected species and their habitats. The Directive only allows 
disturbance, or deterioration or destruction of breeding sites or resting places,  
 

• in the interests of public health and public safety, or for other imperative 
reasons of overriding public interest, including those of a social or 
economic nature and beneficial consequences of primary importance for 
the environment and provided that there is: 

 

• no satisfactory alternative and 

• no detriment to the maintenance of the species population at favourable 
conservation status in their natural range. 

 
The UK implemented the Directive by introducing The Conservation (Natural 
Habitats etc) Regulations 1994 which contain two layers of protection: 
 

• a requirement on Local Planning Authorities (“LPAs”) to have regard to 
the Directive`s requirements above, and 

 

• a licensing system administered by Natural England. 
 
Local Plan Policy NE11 seeks to protect the interests of nature conservation. 
 

Page 11



Circular 6/2005 advises LPAs to give due weight to the presence of protected 
species on a development site to reflect EC requirements.  “This may 
potentially justify a refusal of planning permission.” 
 
PPS9 (2005) advises LPAs to ensure that appropriate weight is attached to 
protected species “Where granting planning permission would result in 
significant harm …. [LPAs] will need to be satisfied that the development 
cannot reasonably be located on any alternative site that would result in less 
or no harm. In the absence of such alternatives [LPAs] should ensure that, 
before planning permission is granted, adequate mitigation measures are put 
in place. Where … significant harm … cannot be prevented or adequately 
mitigated against, appropriate compensation measures should be sought. If 
that significant harm cannot be prevented, adequately mitigated against, or 
compensated for, then planning permission should be refused.”  
 
PPS9 encourages the use of planning conditions or obligations where 
appropriate and again advises [LPAs] to “refuse permission where harm to the 
species or their habitats would result unless the need for, and benefits of, the 
development clearly outweigh that harm.” The converse of this advice is that if 
issues of detriment to the species, satisfactory alternatives and public interest 
seem likely to be satisfied, no impediment to planning permission arises under 
the Directive and Regulations. 
 
The Council’s nature conservation officer has raised an objection to the 
proposal. A bat survey has been undertaken and some evidence of bats was 
recorded during the survey, but as the survey was undertaken in December it 
was not possible to undertake an activity/emergence survey.  At present the 
species of bat roosting at this property is not known (although it is thought to 
be a crevice dwelling species) and due to the constraints of the survey no 
assessment of level of bat activity or the importance of the roost has been 
provided. 
 
The submitted report recommends that further surveys are undertaken at the 
appropriate time of the year to assess the importance of the roost and confirm 
the species of bat present. Bats are a European protected species and as 
such the local planning authority has a statutory duty in the way it determines 
planning applications that may affect their habitat and resting place under the 
EC Habitats Directives. As a matter of law, taking into account the 
information currently submitted, the Council is not in a position to 
approve this planning application. Irrespective of other issues to be 
determined the application should be refused on the basis of insufficient 
information to assess the impact on a European protected species. 
 
Although not a European protected species further information is also 
required in respect of Badgers, which have previously been recorded at the 
site, prior to granting any planning permission. Protection and enhancement 
features in respect of breeding birds and Otters also requires further detail but 
this element could be dealt with by planning conditions. 
 

Page 12



Landscape and trees 
 
The landscape impact from public vantage points outside the site is limited 
due to the ground levels and good screening of the site with mature trees. An 
arboricultural statement has been submitted with the application and an 
assessment of this from the Council’s officer for arboriculture is awaited. 
Members will be updated on this matter. 
 
Amenity 
 
The group of residents adjoining of the site have raised objections, one of the 
reasons being the impact on their living conditions. The previously approved 
extensions to the property includes a swimming pool extension that would 
extend close to the boundary with these properties, and that should be taken 
into account as a material consideration. The building itself complies with 
distance standards set out in policy DC38 and sufficient separation distance 
exists with the rear elevations of those properties, such that there would be no 
detrimental loss of light. However, the mass of the proposed structure close to 
the boundary of those properties is considered to have a significantly 
detrimental impact to the outlook from those properties and would result in a 
harmful injury to amenity. The impact on Coach House No.1 is considered to 
be particularly deleterious in terms of outlook. Noise and disturbance from the 
formal car park area must also be considered, and whilst the proposed car 
park would located in a similar position to the existing hardstanding, the 
location of the car park hard up against the western boundary of rear garden 
area of Coach House No.1 is considered to be an unacceptable arrangement. 
In terms of privacy, it is considered that there would not be any undue degree 
of overlooking from the building due to the angle between the buildings and 
existing private amenity space. However, for the reasons outlined it is 
considered that there would be a significant loss of residential amenity 
contrary to policy DC3 of the Local Plan. 
 
Highways 
 
As reported above in the consultation responses, the Strategic Highways 
Manager has not raised objections to the proposal, subject to revised plans 
which are yet to be received by the planning department. Based on the 
technical assessment of the highways officer, the impact of the proposal on 
highway safety is considered to be acceptable. The proposal involves 
improving the visibility splays at the point of access by re-aligning the 
boundary wall. There is no objection in principle to re-aligning the boundary 
wall, but comments from the Council’s tree and landscape officer are awaited 
to understand if this will impact unacceptably on trees of amenity value. 
 
In terms of public transport provision, bus services operate from Wilmslow 
town centre and the nearest railway station is at Styal, with services to Crewe 
and Manchester. The transport assessment submitted with the application 
acknowledges that the site is not readily accessible by foot and that there are 
no bus services operating along Stanneylands Road within easy walking 
distance of the site. 26 car parking spaces are deemed to be appropriate for 

Page 13



the site and a mini bus service is deemed necessary to transport residents 
and staff to public transport hubs. Despite this, the conclusions of the 
transport assessment are that the site is well served by public transport.  
 
On the contrary, it is considered that the site is in a relatively unsustainable 
location. Whilst the proposed mini-bus service may mitigate this marginally, it 
is not considered to be a robust solution to make the site genuinely accessible 
for staff and residents. The poor accessibility of the site is therefore 
considered to be a material consideration that weighs against the proposal 
and conflicts with local and regional planning policies that seek to reduce the 
dependence on the private car. 
 
Design 
 
Policies DC1 and BE1 of the Local Plan seek to ensure a high quality of new 
development sympathetic to the local area, surroundings and the site itself. 
Attention is drawn to such matters as materials, height and mass. Guidance in 
PPS1 seeks to ensure that new developments take opportunities to enhance 
the characters and distinctiveness of places. Policy DC46 of the Local Plan 
seeks to prevent the demolition of dwellings where certain interests may be 
harmed: if the building is situated with a low density housing area and the 
demolition will lead to pressure for future development at a higher density; 
where the building is included in the Council’s list of buildings of local 
architectural importance; or the demolition would result in a loss of amenity or 
adverse impact upon the character of the street scene. In this case the 
building does not lie within a low density housing area as defined by the Local 
Plan and the building is not on the local list. 
 
The existing building has character as a traditional Victorian villa. The 
proposed replacement building takes some clues from the existing building 
with mock timbered gables and traditional materials of red brick and timber 
windows. However, there is no ornate detail on the proposed plans which are 
considered to be justified given the unfortunate loss of the original building 
that would result. 
 
The plans indicate an alteration in existing ground levels to accommodate an 
exposed basement, revealing a 4 storey building on the proposed east and 
south elevations. The provision of bedroom space for the care home provides 
a uniform fenestration on 3 levels across the majority of the building, which is 
interrupted by larger elements of glazing in place to allow light to communal 
areas and spaces. The result is a confused juxtaposition of traditional and 
contemporary features. The sheer mass of the proposed building, which 
erodes the spacious character of the site, combined with the alteration of 
grounds levels and inappropriate design result in a building which is not 
considered to be sympathetic to the site, or the surroundings, and which is 
contrary to policies BE1, DC1 and national guidance in PPS1. 
 
Policy EM18 of the RSS requires new development over 1000 sq m to secure 
at least 10% of their predicted energy requirements from decentralised and 
renewable or low carbon sources, unless it can be demonstrated that it is not 

Page 14



feasible or viable. The application submitted refers to a high energy efficiency 
of the building, with the potential for a BREAM rating of excellent. This is to be 
welcomed, but renewable energy requirements are not addressed and 
therefore more information would be required in this respect.  
 
Assessment of need  
 
The former Macclesfield Borough district has an ageing population with a 
higher proportion of pensioner households than the regional average (2001 
Census) and population predictions indicate that there will be 13,400 
additional persons in the over 65 age group by 2029. It is a key aim of the 
Council to meet the needs of the Borough’s ageing population. The need to 
cater for the care needs of the ageing population is well documented and the 
needs assessment submitted with the application builds on data in the 
Macclesfield Borough Housing Needs Study 2004 and the Macclesfield 
Borough Strategic Housing Market Assessment 2008. Historically care needs 
have been met with the provision of residential care homes and whilst there 
will continue to be some demand for residential care homes (particularly for 
example for dementia patients) policy is moving towards the provision of extra 
care schemes. It is therefore not clear, as the applicant is suggesting, that 
there is such strong needs case for a residential care home in this area. 
However, until a strategic policy across Cheshire East is clarified Members 
are advised that the general and local care needs of the Borough’s ageing 
population are a factor in favour of the proposed development.  
 
Notwithstanding this, the applicant has not submitted any sort of sequential 
analysis which would be necessary to understand how much weight should be 
given to meeting the identified need for residential care homes in the local 
area. This is particularly important because a key issue in determining the 
application is whether very special circumstances exist to clearly outweigh the 
harm to the Green Belt and any other harm. That is to say, that if a local need 
is identified, greater weight may be accorded to that need if the applicant 
could demonstrate that the need could not be met elsewhere at sequentially 
preferable sites. 
 
REQUIRED HEADS OF TERMS 
 
No draft heads of terms have been submitted with the application. However, if 
approved the proposal would require a legal agreement for the operation of a 
travel plan and to ensure the care home was meeting local needs first (on the 
basis that this is the case to justify the development in the Green Belt): 
 

• Cascade criteria for entry into residential care home 

• Travel plan and monitoring costs 
 
CONCLUSIONS AND REASON(S) FOR THE DECISION 
 
The proposal is inappropriate development in the Green Belt and as such very 
special circumstances must be demonstrated to justify the development. Very 
special circumstances will only exist if the harm by reason of inappropriate 

Page 15



development and any other harm is clearly outweighed by other 
considerations in favour of the proposals. The additional harm identified that 
would result from the development is significant in terms of loss of openness, 
harm to the character of the site, poor design, harm to residential amenity, 
insufficient information in respect of impact on a European Protected Species, 
and poor accessibility and sustainability. The proposed development would be 
contrary to policies GC1, DC1, DC3, DC57, BE1 and NE11 of the 
Macclesfield Borough Local Plan and policies DP1, DP2, DP5, DP7, DP9, 
RT2, RT9 and EM1 of the Regional Spatial Strategy. It is not considered that 
the suggested need for the development, or any possible fallback position in 
respect of implementing an existing planning permission, individually or 
combined, carries sufficient weight to outweigh this harm. As such the 
application is recommended for refusal. 
 
 
 

Page 16



Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of HMSO.

© Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to legal or civil proceedings. Cheshire East Borough Council, licence no. 100018585 2007..              
#

LANGLEY HOUSE, STANNEYLANDS ROAD, WILMSLOW, CHESHIRE, SK9 4HB

NGR - 384,780 : 383,270

 

Page 17



 
 
Application for Full Planning 

RECOMMENDATION : Refuse for the following reasons 

 
1. R01LP      -  Contrary to Local Plan policies                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

2. R03NC      -  Insufficient ecological information                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

3. R07RD      -  Development unneighbourly                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

4. R10MS      -  Design of substandard quality                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

5. R13HW      -  Unsustainable development                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

6. Inappropriate development in the Green Belt                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

7. Harm to openness and character of the site                  

Page 18



Application No: 10/0869M  

 Location: 17, WINGFIELD DRIVE, WILMSLOW, SK9 6AN 
 Proposal: TWO STOREY REAR & GABLE EXTENSIONS INCLUDING MONO 

PITCH ROOF OVER PORCH AND BAY WINDOW AND WIDENING 
EXISTING CAR PARK HARDSTANDING 
 

 For MR IVAN MOLLINSON 
 

 Registered 08-Mar-2010 
 Policy Item No 
 Grid Reference 383422 380611 
  
Date report prepared:  16th April 2010 
 

 
 
REASON FOR REPORT 
 
The application was called-in to Committee by the Ward Councillor, Gary 
Barton on the grounds that the proposed development would be too large for 
the plot and would be too close to the boundaries. In addition, the proposed 
development would be overbearing to the neighbours on both sides.   
 
RELEVANT PREVIOUS APPLICATIONS 
 
No planning history since 1977 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
None 
 
PUBLICITY 
 
The application was advertised by neighbour notification with a last date for 
comments on 9th April 2010. However, on receipt of revised plans on 16th April 
2010, this was extended to 27th April 2010 and the neighbours have been re-
notified.  
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
A petition of signatures from 8 neighbouring properties has been received 
together with 3 separate letters of objections raising the following concerns, 

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION 
Approve subject to conditions 
 
MAIN ISSUES 

• Impact on neighbouring amenity 

• Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area and 
the existing dwelling house 

Agenda Item 6Page 19



 

• The property is too large for the site 

• It would not be in keeping with the surrounding properties 

• The loss of parking provision to the side and rear of the property would 
lead to an increased level of parking on the street leading with a 
subsequent increase in congestion. 

• Restriction of light to the upstairs window and roof light on single storey 
rear extension at no.19 (comment received prior to the receipt of 
revised plans) 

 
All other comments raised are not material planning considerations that can 
be taken into consideration. 
 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
The application site comprises a semi-detached two-storey dwellinghouse 
c.1950, with a detached garage to the rear of the property.  The application 
site is located on Wingfield Drive surrounded by semi-detached dwellings. 
 
DETAILS OF PROPOSAL 
 
Full planning permission is sought to demolish the existing garage and erect a 
two-storey side, two storey and single storey rear extension, including the 
erection of a canopy roof over the existing porch and bay window and the 
widening of the existing car park hard standing.  Revised plans were received 
by the department on 16th April 2010. 
 
POLICIES 
 
Regional Spatial Strategy 
DP1   Spatial Principles 
 
Local Plan Policy 
BE1   Design Guidance 
H13   Protecting Residential Areas 
DC1   Design: New Build 
DC2   Design: Extensions 
DC3   Design: Amenity 
DC6   Circulation and Access 
DC38   Space, Light and Privacy 
DC43  Side extensions 
   
CONSIDERATIONS (External to Planning) 
 
None 
 

Page 20



KEY ISSUES 
 
Principle of Development 
The principle issues surrounding the determination of this application are the 
impact of the proposed development on residential amenity and the impact 
upon the character and appearance of the surrounding area/design. 
 
Design 
The design of the proposed two-storey side/rear extension has been 
amended from the scheme that was originally submitted.  The first floor of the 
two-storey rear extension has been reduced to a single storey at the point 
closest to the adjoining property; the two-storey side extension has been 
stepped-in 800mm from the side boundary; and the rear extension has been 
increased in depth by 0.5 metres.  
 
Local plan Policy DC43 states that two storey extensions should normally be 
sited at a minimum distance of 1 metre from the side boundary in order to 
prevent a terracing effect. The proposed extension has been stepped-in 
800mm from the boundary. This does not comply with the distance outlined in 
the policy, however the neighbouring property is stepped approximately 3.5 
metres from the side boundary and the design of the proposed extension with 
the first floor stepped back at the front elevation does not result in the 
development creating a terracing effect. In this instance it is considered that a 
marginal reduction in the distance is considered acceptable.   
 
It should be noted that there are other examples of similarly extended semi-
detached properties within the general locality, namely nos. 82 & 31 Wingfield 
Avenue that are not stepped-in from the side boundary. The proposed 
extensions would use materials to match those on the existing dwellinghouse 
and their design is considered to complement the existing dwellinghouse. 
 
The proposed part single storey/part two-storey extension to the rear is not 
readily visible from public locations and is not considered to be harmful to the 
overall appearance of the property or the character of the area.  
 
For the reasons outlined above it is considered that the revised plans have 
addressed the initial concerns and they would not be detrimental to the 
character or appearance of the existing dwellinghouse or the street scene. 
 
Amenity 
Taking into account the separation distance of 2.65m between the adjacent 
property at no.15 and the proposed development at no.17 and the compliance 
with the 45 degree rule, it is considered that the impact upon the outlook and 
light at the adjacent property of no.15 is limited and acceptable. There are no 
windows to habitable rooms on the side facing elevation at no.15 and those 
proposed for no.17 would be opaquely glazed and serve an en-suite and a 
bathroom on the first floor and a downstairs w.c and utility room at ground 
floor level. Therefore, there is no concern over privacy.  
 

Page 21



Revised plans, showing a separation distance of 2.2m between the side 
elevation of the proposed first floor element of the two-storey rear extension 
and the adjoining property of no.19 were received.  Whilst the revised plans 
have increased the depth of the rear extensions by 0.5 metres, they would 
comply with the 45 degree rule. Therefore, it is now considered that the 
impact upon outlook and light at this property is also considered to be limited 
and therefore, it is considered acceptable. 
 
To the rear boundary lie the detached properties of nos. 24 and 26 Strawberry 
Lane.  However, the rear elevation of these properties is situated at a distance 
of 37m from the existing rear elevation of no.17. Therefore, given the 
separation distance between these properties and the application site, it is not 
considered that the there would be an adverse impact to the neighbouring 
amenities of these adjacent dwellings. 
 
Highways 
 
The proposed development would utilise the existing driveway from the 
property onto Wingfield Drive.  Additional hard standing would be provided for 
a second car parking space within the front curtilage. This is considered to be 
a satisfactory level of car parking provision for the proposed development 
taking into consideration the location of property on a quiet residential street.  
 
CONCLUSIONS AND REASON(S) FOR THE DECISION 
 
The revised plans are considered to overcome the issues surrounding 
neighbouring amenity and impact on the character and appearance of the 
street scene.  Therefore a recommendation of approval is made. 

Page 22



Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of HMSO.
© Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to legal or civil proceedings. Cheshire East Council, licence no. 100049045  2010.            #
17, WINGFIELD DRIVE, WILMSLOW, SK9 6AN

NGR- 383,420:380,610

 

Page 23



 
 
Application for Householder 

RECOMMENDATION : Approve subject to following conditions 

 
1. A03FP      -  Commencement of development (3 years)                                                                                                                                                                                                         

2. A03EX      -  Materials to match existing                                                                                                                                                                                                     

3. A25GR      -  Obscure glazing requirement                                                                                                                                                                                       

4. A01AP      -  Development in accord with approved plans                                                                                                                                                           

 

 
 
 

Page 24



Application No: 10/0696M  

 Location: GRANGE FARM, HOLMES CHAPEL ROAD, TOFT, KNUTSFORD, 
WA16 9RD 

 Proposal: REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING OUTMODED SEMI DERELICT 
AGRICULTURAL BUILDINGS WITH A NEW PURPOSE 
DESIGNED AGRICULTURAL BUILDING 
 

 For MR IAN McGRATH, G.D. MCGRATH 
 

 Registered 25-Feb-2010 
 Policy Item No 
 Grid Reference 376382 373610 
  
Date Report Prepared: 16th April 2010 

 
REASON FOR REPORT 
 
The applicant is related to a Councillor and therefore, the application must be 
determined by committee under the terms of the Council’s constitution.  
 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
McGrath Partners is a family partnership consisting of Ian McGrath and his 
parents. The business farms a total of 126 ha, the land holding is split 
between the Tabley Estate and land owned by Cheshire East Council and 
various private landlords. A herd of 130 dairy cows are milked at Parkgate 
Farm Tabley and 150 dairy replacements are reared on the land at Tabley 
and Peover. Although Grange Farm (which is used for growing maize and 
grazing cattle) itself only extends to 11 ha the business farms a further 73 ha 
that adjoin the farm on various Farm Business Tenancies and contract 
farming agreements, as such the total area of land farmed on and around 
Grange Farm is 84ha.  
 
DETAILS OF PROPOSAL 
 
The scheme would demolish two timber structures built in the 1960’s which 
are in a poor state of repair and seeks consent for a new agricultural building 
with a floor space of 998 square metres (significantly larger than the buildings 

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION 
 
Refuse 
 
MAIN ISSUES 
 
1) Appropriateness of the development in the Green Belt  
2) impact upon the visual amenity of the area  
3) highway safety  
4) impact on residential amenity 

Agenda Item 7Page 25



which it would replace) which will partially be sited on the footprint of the 
existing buildings. The building would have an eaves height of 3.6m and a 
ridge line of 7.3m 
 
The supporting information states that the structure would facilitate the 
redevelopment of Grange Farm to meet modern welfare standards and 
farming practices which have changed since the existing buildings were 
constructed.  
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
65163P Installation underground of two 30 ft long x 9 ft dia steel tanks to 

collect existing discharge of farm effluent and prevent pollution 
of watercourse - approved 11.01.1991       

 
66400P  Excavate effluent lagoon 60'x 38'x 8' deep to collect existing 

farm drainage and prevent pollution of water course - approved 
22.06.1992       

 
09/3210M  New agricultural building - refused 03.12.2009       
 
POLICIES 
 
Regional Spatial Strategy 
 
DP1, DP7 & EM1 (A) 
 
Local Plan Policy 
 
BE1, GC1, DC1, DC3, DC6 & DC28 
 
Other considerations 
 
PPG2: Green Belts 
 
PPS7: Sustainable Development in Rural Areas  
 
CONSULTATIONS (External to Planning) 
 
Highways: No objections to previous submission  
 
Landscape: did not object to previous submission  
 
Jodrell Bank: no comments to make 
 
VIEWS OF THE PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL 
 
None received to date  
 

Page 26



OTHER REPRESENTATIONS 
 
None received to date  
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
A Supporting Planning Statement, Agricultural Appraisal, statement from 
Wright & Morten Veterinary Surgeons and a statement from Wisemans 
Dairies accompany the application. The full details of the supporting 
documents can be viewed on the application file/online.  
 
The crux of the statements is that the herd which produces milk sold through 
Sainsbury’s has to meet strict farm assurance requirements which is difficult 
with the existing buildings hence the application for a modern building to 
assist in meeting the requirements for animal health and welfare. The current 
buildings have deteriorated to the extent that animal health and welfare is now 
being comprised.  
 
Grange Farm is used principally for grazing dairy heifers and dry cows. Both 
classes of stock require winter housing. The buildings at Parkgate Farm are 
fully utilised with milking cows and young calves and the landlord (the Crown 
Estate) will not permit any further buildings on the site.  
 
The building will be for cattle/general purposes (storage of farm machinery, 
bedding etc). The appraisal states that a new building to provide 52 new 
cubicles with an undercover area (to replace facilities found in existing 
buildings) would normally have to be in excess of 582 square metres. The 
document explains that a building of 998 square metres is applied for, as the 
business rear surplus dairy heifers to provide a further income to supplement 
the milk cheque and young stock numbers are likely to increase in future 
years, it is entirely appropriate to build in an excess on top of current 
requirements in order to provide for future expansion. 
 
A further 400 square metres is set aside for bedding, feed, fertilizer and 
secure storage of farm machinery.  
 
It is concluded that the proposed building is fully justified by the current and 
likely future cattle housing requirements coupled with the need for secure 
machinery, feed/material storage.  
 
OFFICER APPRAISAL 
 
Policy & Principle of Development 
 
The key issues to consider in the determination of this application are the 
appropriateness of the development in the Green Belt and the impact upon 
the visual amenity of the area.  
 
In terms of MBLP Policy GC1, the erection of buildings for agricultural 
purposes is appropriate in the Green Belt.   

Page 27



 
The application holding is an established dairy unit, and the purpose of the 
building is for the housing of livestock, feed, machinery etc. The applicant 
states that the existing building does not meet relevant welfare standards, and 
secure storage for machinery etc. is required. This view is supported by the 
farms veterinary surgeons and Wiseman Dairies.  
 
The supporting information states that the 998 square metre building would 
provide 582 square metres for 52 new cubicles for bulling/dairy heifers with an 
undercover feed area, leaving 416 square metres. A maximum of 400 square 
metres would be assigned for secure storage for machinery and other farm 
requisites (straw bedding, feed, fertiliser etc). Going off the figures supplied in 
the supporting documents, 16 square metres would appear to be 
undesignated. 
 
Even in light of the supplemented agricultural justification, concern is raised 
especially in terms of adequate justification for a structure of this size and 
scale. The figures given in terms of floor space are very vague and no floor 
plans have been submitted to give a greater insight into how the building 
would actually be used, this raises concern as the replacement structure 
would be significantly larger than the building it replaces. It was noted during 
the officer’s site visit that the traditional ‘parlour’ building appears to be 
redundant. Although noting its narrow ‘L’ shaped design, it could be utilised 
for the storage of feed/fertiliser and other smaller items outlined in the 
supporting information, which could as a result reduce the required size of the 
new building.   
 
Furthermore, the appraisal states that the structure would be larger than the 
current requirement of the existing farm practices, to allow for future 
expansion. It is considered that insufficient justification for the agricultural 
building has been included with this application for a building of the size and 
scale proposed.  
 
Although the need for a replacement structure is not disputed and the 
principle of agricultural development is acceptable in the Green Belt, given the 
concern in relation to the lack of information, additional documentation has 
been requested from the agent and any details received will be provided in an 
update report.  
 
Highways 
 
The existing access, parking and turning arrangements are considered to be 
acceptable and the Strategic Highways Manager raised no objections to the 
previous submission.  
 
Design 
 
Policy DC28 states that “the design, scale and materials of the proposal 
should harmonise with the existing landscape and any existing buildings and 

Page 28



should not significantly harm or detract from the visual character of the area 
and its surroundings”. 
 
The design of the building is fairly typical for a modern agricultural building 
and will be sited within the farmyard amongst the existing buildings that are 
present on site. However, the scale of the proposal would ‘dwarf’ the existing 
buildings. No justification has been provided with regard to the 7.3m high 
ridge line. The eaves line would be similar to those of existing buildings in the 
farmyard.  
 
Although a significant amount of the building would be used for storing 
machinery, no details (e.g. specific machinery requirements) have been 
submitted as to why the ridge height has to be a pitch roof of 7.3m. It is 
envisaged that the roof could be redesigned so that it improves the impact on 
the openness of the green belt by reducing its overall mass and bulk.   
 
The existing brick built buildings on site have a traditional appearance. The 
proposal would be a clear contrast to those as existing. It is a very modern 
design with a large number of roof lights and it would immediately abut the 
existing structure increasing the contrast between the designs of the 
structures and adding to the overall perceived bulk. There are limited views of 
the building from outside of the site, though the roofline would be visible due 
to the fact that the building is higher than others on site. 
 
The materials (Yorkshire boarding concrete panels and grey fibre cement 
sheets) could be controlled by condition given the expanse of the structure 
and the views from public vantage points if the committee resolve to approve 
the application.  
 
Amenity 
 
The proposal is not considered to raise significant further amenity issues than 
from the existing situation. ‘Langley’ is the nearest residential property to the 
site (other than the farmhouse), and having viewed the proposal from the front 
amenity area/driveway of Langley the existing screening (even at this time of 
year) is considered to be sufficient to screen the majority of the proposal to 
eaves level. Furthermore, when consulted on the previous application the 
Landscape Officer believed no additional landscaping was required.  
 
The closest edge of the proposal would be located around 13m from the 
shared boundary (which forms the access/drive) with ‘Langley’ and the rear of 
the structure would be located around 40 from the dwelling house.  
 
Landscape  
 
The Landscape Officer found the existing scenario satisfactory and it is 
considered that no further details/landscaping would be required.   
 

Page 29



CONCLUSIONS AND REASON(S) FOR THE DECISION 
 
Whilst the principle of agricultural development is acceptable in the Green 
Belt, in this case, even in light of the additional information besides that 
submitted with the previous scheme, a building of the size proposed has not 
been justified and the development is therefore, inappropriate. Additionally, 
the scale and design of the building is unacceptable in relation to other 
buildings on site and would have a detrimental impact on the openness of the 
Green Belt.  
 

Page 30



Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of HMSO.
© Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to legal or civil proceedings. Cheshire East Council, licence no. 100049045  2010.            #
GRANGE FARM, HOLMES CHAPEL ROAD, TOFT, KNUTSFORD, WA16 9RD

NGR: 376,380:373,610

 

Page 31



 
 
 
 
Application for Full Planning 

RECOMMENDATION : Refuse for the following reasons 

 
1. R06LP      -  Inadequate agricultural justification                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

2. R05LP      -  Harmful to appearance of the countryside                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

 

 
 
 

Page 32



Application No: 10/1115M  

 Location: 9, GORSEY ROAD, WILMSLOW, SK9 5DU 
 Proposal: SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

 
 For MR K WHITTAKER 

 
 Registered 23-Mar-2010 
 Policy Item No 
 Grid Reference 383604 381439 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REASON FOR REPORT 
The application requires determination by the Northern Planning Committee 
under the terms of the constitution of the Council as the applicant is a relative of 
an employee of the Council.  
 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND CONTEXT 
The application site is located within a Predominantly Residential Area of 
Wilmslow.  The site comprises a detached brick built dwellinghouse with integral 
garage.  The dwellinghouse has been lawfully extended in the past to incorporate 
a lean-to conservatory to the side elevation, a first floor bedroom extension and a 
conservatory and small brick built utility room to the rear elevation.  
 
DETAILS OF PROPOSAL 
Full planning permission is sought for the removal of the existing rear 
conservatory and utility room and the erection of a single storey rear extension. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
68568P First floor bedroom extension and conservatory 
  Approved, 28

th
 October 1991 

 

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION 
Approval subject to conditions 
 
MAIN ISSUES 
Impact on the character and appearance of the dwellinghouse and wider 
streetscene; 
Impact on residential amenity 

Agenda Item 8Page 33



POLICIES 
 
Regional Spatial Strategy 
DP1  Spatial Principles 
DP7  Promote environmental Quality 
 
Local Plan Policy 
BE1  Design Guidance 
DC1  New Build 
DC2  Extensions and Alterations 
DC3  Amenity 
DC38  Space, Light and Privacy 
 
OTHER REPRESENTATIONS 
No letters of representation have been received at the time of preparation of this 
report. The last date for comment is the 19

th
 April 2010. 

 
 
OFFICER APPRAISAL 
 
Principle of Development 
The application site is situated within a Predominantly Residential Area and as 
such the principle for extending has already been established. 
 
Policy 
Macclesfield Borough Local Plan Policies BE1, DC1 and DC2 seek to promote 
high standards of development that reflects local character in respect to design, 
use of materials, height, form and massing.  Policies DC3 and DC38 seek to 
ensure the protection of the amenities of residential properties in the vicinity of 
the site. 
  
Design 
The proposed rear extension would be constructed on a similar footprint as that 
of the existing rear conservatory and utility room.  It is proposed to project beyond 
the rear elevation by 5.045m at the furthest point, stepping back to 2.245m 
towards the northeastern side of the site.   
 
Located at the rear of the property, the proposal has no impact on the street 
scene of Gorsey Road. The proposed extension is on the same approximate ‘L’ 
shaped footprint of the existing conservatory and utility room it is to replace. The 
extension would have a pitched roof and includes 4 velux roof lights. The design 
and massing of the proposed extension is considered to respect that of the 
existing dwellinghouse and wider locality.  Similarly, it is proposed to be 
constructed of materials that compliment the existing dwellinghouse. 
 
It is therefore considered that the design and scale of the proposed extension 
would be acceptable in accordance with policies BE1, DC1 and DC2 of the 
Macclesfield Borough Local Plan. 
 
Amenity 
Sufficient spacing distances would remain between the proposed extension and 
the common boundary shared with No.7 Gorsey Road, to be considered 

Page 34



acceptable and compliant with MBLP policy DC38.  The proposal is no nearer to 
the side boundary than the existing arrangement. 
 
Taking into consideration that the proposed extension is to replace an existing 
conservatory of a similar dimension the proposed extension would not adversely 
impact on the privacy of neighbouring occupiers.  It is therefore considered that 
the proposal would be compliant with policies DC3 and DC38 of the Macclesfield 
Borough Local Plan. 
 
CONCLUSIONS AND REASON(S) FOR THE DECISION 
 
The proposed development is a modest household extension replacing an 
existing conservatory. For the reasons given above it is considered that the 
proposed development complies with the relevant policies of the Development 
Plan. There are no material considerations that weigh against the proposed 
development. In the light of section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 the application is therefore recommended for approval 
subject to standard conditions for household extensions. 

Page 35



Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of HMSO.
© Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to legal or civil proceedings. Cheshire East Council, licence no. 100049045  2010.            #
9, GORSEY ROAD, WILMSLOW, SK9 5DU

NGR- 383,600:381,440

 

Page 36



 
 
Application for Householder 

RECOMMENDATION : Approve subject to following conditions 

 
1. A01AP      -  Development in accord with approved plans                                                                                                                                                                                         

2. A03EX      -  Materials to match existing                                                                                                                                                                                         

3. A03FP      -  Commencement of development (3 years)                                                                                                                                                                 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting
	5 09/4305M-Demolition of Existing Detached Property & Replacement with Construction of 53 Bed Senior Living Accommodation with Use Class C1, C2 & C3, Langley House, Stanneylands Road, Wilmslow, Cheshire for Mr & Mrs T Ghani
	6 10/0869M-Two Storey Rear & Gable Extensions Including Mono Pitch Roof Over Porch and Bay Window and Widening Existing Car Park Hardstanding, 17, Wingfield Drive, Wilmslow for Mr Ivan Mollinson
	7 10/0696M-Replacement of Existing Outmoded Semi Derelict Agricultural Buildings with a new Purpose Designed Agricultural Building, Grange Farm, Holmes Chapel Road, Toft, Knutsford for Mr Ian Mcgrath, G.D. Mcgrath
	8 10/1115M-Single Storey Rear Extension, 9, Gorsey Road, Wilmslow for Mr K Whittaker

